
 

 

 

 

 

CITY COUNCIL MEETING 
PACKET 

 

FOR 
 

Wednesday, November 14, 2012 
 

Sherwood City Hall 
22560 SW Pine Street 

Sherwood, Oregon 
    
 

 
6:00pm City Council Work Session 

 
7:00pm Regular City Council Meeting 

 
URA Board of Directors Meeting 

(to follow the City Council Meeting) 

 

 



 

City Council Agenda                                                                                                                                                        
November 14, 2012 
Page 1 of 2 

 
 
 
6:00PM WORK SESSION 
 
 
REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING 
 
1. CALL TO ORDER 
 
2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
    
3. ROLL CALL 
 
4. CONSENT: 

 
A. Approval of October 2, 2012 City Council Meeting Minutes 

B. Approval of October 16, 2012 City Council Meeting Minutes 

C. Resolution 2012-054 Reappointing Lynn Snyder to the Parks and Recreation Board 

D. Resolution 2012-055 Reappointing Marney Jett to the Parks and Recreation Board 

 
5. PRESENTATIONS 

 
A. Proclamation and Recognition of Give N Gobble Coordinators 
B. Proclamation Human Rights Week  

C. Presentation, Bank of Oswego 
 

6. CITIZEN COMMENTS 
 

7. NEW BUSINESS 
 
A. Ordinance 2012-013 Declaring certain sidewalks in the City to be defective under Sherwood 

Municipal Code Chapter 12.08 and ratifying prior acts with respect to such sidewalks 

(Craig Sheldon, Public Works Director) 

 

B. Ordinance 2012-014 Declaring certain sidewalks in the City to be defective under Sherwood 

Municipal Code Chapter 12.08 (Craig Sheldon, Public Works Director) 

 
8. CITY MANAGER AND DEPARTMENT REPORTS 

 
9. COUNCIL ANNOUNCEMENTS 

 
10. ADJOURN to URA Board of Directors Meeting 

 
How to Find Out What's on the Council Schedule: 

 

AGENDA 
 

SHERWOOD CITY COUNCIL 
November 14, 2012 

 
 

6:00pm City Council Work Session 
 

7:00pm Regular City Council Meeting 
 

URA Board of Directors Meeting 
(to follow the City Council Mtg.) 

 
Sherwood City Hall 
22560 Pine Street 

Sherwood, OR  97140 

1



 

City Council Agenda                                                                                                                                                        
November 14, 2012 
Page 2 of 2 

City Council meeting materials and agenda are posted to the City web page at www.sherwoodoregon.gov, by the Friday prior to a Council 
meeting. Council agendas are also posted at the Sherwood Library/City Hall, the YMCA, the Senior Center, and the City's bulletin board at 
Albertson’s. Council meeting materials are available to the public at the Library.   
 
To Schedule a Presentation before Council: 
If you would like to appear before Council, please submit your name, phone number, the subject of your presentation and the date you wish to 
appear to the City Recorder Sylvia Murphy by calling 503-625-4246 or by e-mail to: murphys@sherwoodoregon.gov 

2

http://www.sherwoodoregon.gov/
mailto:murphys@sherwoodoregon.gov


DRAFT 

City Council Minutes 
October 2, 2012 
Page 1 of 15 

 

SHERWOOD CITY COUNCIL MINUTES 

22560 SW Pine St., Sherwood, Or 

October 2, 2012 

 
CITY COUNCIL WORK SESSION 

 

1. CALL TO ORDER: Mayor Mays called the meeting to order at 6:35 pm. 
 

2. COUNCIL PRESENT: Mayor Keith Mays, Councilors Matt Langer, Robyn Folsom, Krisanna Clark 

and Linda Henderson. Council President Dave Grant and Councilor Bill Butterfield were absent. 

 
3. STAFF PRESENT: City Manager Joe Gall, Public Works Director Craig Sheldon Community 

Development Director Tom Pessemier, Planning Manager Julia Hajduk, Finance Director Craig 

Gibons, City Engineer Bob Galati , HR Manager Anna Lee and City Recorder Sylvia Murphy.  

 
4. TOPICS DISCUSSED:  

 
A. Street Trees: Public Works Director Craig Sheldon presented a power point presentation (see 

record, Exhibit A), discussion followed with staff seeking Council consensus to move forward with 

a maintenance program. Council conceded with staff moving forward and providing additional 

information to the Council. 

 

B. PGE Franchise Agreement: City Manager Joe Gall briefed the Council on this topic and sought 

Council direction to move forward with negotiations with PGE for a franchise agreement. Council 

discussion occurred and Council conceded with staff moving forward with negotiations and 

bringing information back to the Council at a future date.  

 

5. ADJOURN: 
 
Mayor Mays adjourned the work session at 6:55 pm and convened to a regular Council session. 
 

 
 REGULAR CITY COUNCIL SESSION 
 
1. CALL TO ORDER: Mayor Mays called the meeting to order at 7:04 pm. 

 
2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE:  

 
3. COUNCIL PRESENT: Mayor Keith Mays, Councilors Matt Langer, Linda Henderson, Bill Butterfield, 

Robyn Folsom and Krisanna Clark. Council President Dave Grant was absent. 

 

4. STAFF AND LEGAL COUNSEL PRESENT: City Manager Joe Gall, Police Captain Ty Hanlon, 

Public Works Director Craig Sheldon, Finance Director Craig Gibons, Community Development 

3



DRAFT 

City Council Minutes 
October 2, 2012 
Page 2 of 15 

Director Tom Pessemier, HR Manager Anna Lee, IT Director Brad Crawford, City Engineer Bob 

Galati, Planning Manager Julia Hajduk and City Recorder Sylvia Murphy. City Attorney Paul Elsner. 

 

Mayor Mays addressed the Consent Agenda and asked for a motion. 

5. CONSENT: 
 
A. Approval of September 18, 2012 City Council Meeting Minutes 

 

MOTION: FROM COUNCILOR LINDA HENDERSON TO ADOPT THE CONSENT AGENDA, 

SECONDED BY COUNCILOR KRISANNA CLARK. ALL PRESENT COUNCIL MEMBERS VOTED 

IN FAVOR, 6:0 (DAVE GRANT WAS ABSENT). 

Mayor Mays addressed the next agenda item. 

6. PRESENTATIONS 
 
A. Eagle Scout Recognition 
 

Mayor Mays stated there was not a presentation this evening as the Scout being recognized has 

gone off to college and a congratulatory letter and the certificate would be mailed. 

 

Mayor Mays moved to remove Citizen Comments from the agenda due to the public hearing 

scheduled for tonight and sought Council consensus. Councilor Folsom asked to continue with 

hearing citizen comments and no objections were received. Mayor Mays addressed the next agenda 

item. 

7. CITIZEN COMMENTS 
 

Susan Claus 22211 SW Pacific Hwy. Sherwood came forward and commented regarding being in 

the middle of planning commission hearings for an unnamed major tenant that will have a seismic 

impact on Sherwood and said no one can tell her who it is and has heard it’s Walmart. Mrs. Claus 

stated her point in addition to the nondisclosure of the tenant and the fact that we have a Councilor 

that owns the property and he refuses to inform who the tenant is. Mrs. Claus stated her other 

problem is the way the appeal is structured for this application stating it’s a site plan and a site plan 

review and the City charged more than $13,000 and the way the City has the fee structure, for 

anyone to appeal this from the planning commission which is an appointed body, which only requires 

four votes of citizens who are unelected, to the City Council, which are all seven elected positions, 

someone who wants to appeal has to provide one half of the site development fee that was charged, 

this is about $7000. Mrs. Claus expressed disappointment with the fee for something that will be in 

front of the City Council that is a fundamental change not only to the transportation network along 

Tualatin-Sherwood Road but to our existing businesses. Mrs. Claus stated there’s a reason why 

Walmart is called a category killer and said we have existing businesses that will not be here. Mrs. 

Claus asked to be informed who the tenant is and said the anxiety is killing us. Mrs. Claus gave 

examples of effects to businesses and said she did not think it was fair with the current economy to 

bring in a tenant like this. Mrs. Claus commented regarding the decision being in front of the Council 

and this being their decision, commented regarding guessing on traffic impacts. 

Jim Claus 22211 SW Pacific Hwy Sherwood came forward and commented regarding going along 

with the City and fighting public policies and said you get to a point where you don’t and he has 

4



DRAFT 

City Council Minutes 
October 2, 2012 
Page 3 of 15 

crossed this line. Mr. Claus stated he was looking for damages and a lawsuit and this would involve a 

lot of things and asked who is paying Beery Elsner and Hammond to be here and commented 

regarding working under a contract. Mr. Claus commented regarding the City not having a City 

Attorney and having legal advice that goes to advocate your position. Mr. Claus commented 

regarding the City working towards litigation and gave an example of his subdivision on McFall and 

not being able to sell it for four years and it being the best subdivision in town. Mr. Claus commented 

about two years ago, staff putting Cedar Creek pathway on it and lying to Metro. Mr. Claus 

commented regarding the City attorney’s crossing Metro and there being results. Mr. Claus 

commented regarding a case he was involved in in California, commented regarding costs to him and 

Mrs. Claus of $200,000 on that subdivision, commented regarding the pathway and lying to Metro. 

Mr. Claus commented regarding the tenant being Walmart and a letter from Chuck Martinez 

indicating cost per foot, commented regarding manipulating codes and commented regarding tax 

exchanges. Mr. Claus commented regarding the Council taking over the entire process and not liking 

a subdivision and creating a stigma, the Council not wanting someone to develop and then creating a 

road. Mr. Claus commented regarding a lawsuit and Council attacking his property using staff and 

said he has been documenting this to state agencies and recommended Council members obtain 

their own attorney. 

Eugene Stewart 22595 SW Pine Street Sherwood came forward and commented regarding Planning 

Commission meeting minutes and the commission not having the minutes from the previous meeting 

and said this would be helpful to have to be able to refer to the minutes and any actions of the 

commission. 

No other citizen comments were received. Mayor Mays replied to the comments made by Mr. Claus 

and said the City has always treated everyone fair and has been transparent and has heard threats 

from the Claus’ for years and if they want to sue to go ahead and take us to court. 

Mayor Mays addressed the next agenda item and asked the City Recorder to read the public hearing 

statement. 

8. PUBLIC HEARING 
 
A. Ordinance 2012-012 Approving an amendment to the Transportation System Plan and 

Comprehensive Plan regarding the functional classification of Cedar Brook Way 
 
Planning Manager Julia Hajduk came forward and presented a presentation (see record, Exhibit B) 

and stated the amendment before the Council is PA12-03 regarding Cedar Brook Way and explained 

the following areas of the presentation: 

 

Background 

• Transportation System Plan updated in 2005 

• Five amendments to TSP since 2005 

– 4 concept plan areas, made changes to: 

• functional classifications 

• Local street plan 

• Intersection improvements 

– One Functional Classification changes to Columbia Street (related to Cannery project) 

• City is planning to begin a comprehensive update of the TSP next year. Julia stated the City was 

recently notified that we received a TGM Grant award for this. 

5



DRAFT 

City Council Minutes 
October 2, 2012 
Page 4 of 15 

– Several issues need to be addressed sooner to help facilitate development and public 

infrastructure improvement 

 

Issues that need to be addressed prior to comprehensive update to TSP 

• Street functional classification uncertainty in the Cedar Brook Way area, Julia referenced a map 

in the presentation.  

• TSP is not clear regarding connectivity requirements between Elwert and Handley/Meinecke 

• Washington County requirements will only allow connection to one of their arterial streets by a 

collector or another arterial. Julia stated there are exceptions but there is a process to follow and 

there’s not a guarantee, Julia said discussion of this is documented in the Council meeting 

packet, Exhibit 1-K a memo from her to the Planning Commission.  

 

TSP inconsistencies must be addressed - clear local connections planned 

TSP inconsistencies must be addressed - shown on functional classification map 

TSP inconsistencies must be addressed - portions identified for 3 lanes 

 

Julia stated to get to the specifics of uncertainty or lack of clarity in our existing TSP we have a local 

street connectivity map that clearly shows local street connections in this area and we have a 

functional classification map generally showing collectors, neighborhood routes, arterials, the 

principle arterial and it does show a proposed local street, but our street for right-of-way is planned 

for more than two lanes, (Julia referenced the green markers on the map indicating collectors) and 

showed it is identified for three lanes and said this is generally an indication of a higher classification 

street. Julia stated this has caused some uncertainties as far as what the size requirements are, if its 

creditable for SDC’s or county transportation development taxes. Julia stated as a result of this 

uncertainty we decided to try and address these issues to help facilitate development and clear up 

the issues. 

 

Julia explained the following: 

 

Outreach and feedback 

• Study prepared by DKS and Associates, labeled Exhibit 1-B in your packets 

– We mailed letters to affected property owners and posted notices around town and in the 

newspaper 

• Open House held on May 31st 

– 14 people signed in at this event, more may have attended 

• Planning Commission work session 6/26/12, staff was provided with direction to proceed with a 

specific amendment and noticing 

• Notices posted and published in the paper in accordance with code 

• Mailed notice to affected property owners in the area 

• Planning Commission hearing was held on 8/14/12 and 9/11/12 and they forwarded a 

recommendation to the Council 

 

Findings and Record 

• The proposed TSP amendments were reviewed for consistency with local, regional and state 

rules 

– Outlined in Exhibit A in the packet as well as the exhibit to the ordinance. 

• Exhibits 1A-1K were reviewed by the Commission prior to making their recommendation and are 

in the Council meeting packet. 

6



DRAFT 

City Council Minutes 
October 2, 2012 
Page 5 of 15 

– Exhibit 1A – Proposed amendments, to be adopted with  the ordinance 

– Exhibit 1B – DKS memo analyzing several scenarios for connectivity. Julia stated there 

were four alternatives reviewed in the memo and what is before the Council is a 

combination of options 3 and 4 which is the connection from Elwert to Meinecke with an 

access to Hwy 99w but not saying whether or not it’s right in/right out or a full access 

intersection as this would be dependent on development when that connection is ready to 

be made. 

 

Julia informed the Council she received today 3 exhibits, she labeled Exhibits 2, 3 and 4, all 

submitted by Mr. & Mrs. Claus. The exhibits were provided to the Council (see record, Exhibits 

cataloged as 2, 3 and 4), Julia offered to answer questions pertaining to the exhibits. No comments 

were received. 

 

Julia explained the following in the presentation. 

 

Planning Commission Recommendation 

• Change the classification of Cedar Brook Way from a local to collector street 

• Clarify Cedar Brook Way is intended to connect between Handley and Elwert 

• Confirm one access connection to 99W from Cedar Brook Way 

– The vicinity being 990 feet from each existing intersection and acknowledging that  

– Full access or right in/right out to be determined based on development need 

• The planning commission discussed and confirmed that Bushong Terrace would remain a local 

street connection option, but realized that whether or not it needs to be extended would be 

determined at the time that development of the Elk’s property and whether or not it meets the 

needs and criteria for typography and things like that. 

 

Recommendation 

• Hold a public hearing and consider adoption of Ordinance 2012-012 amending the Transportation 

System Plan and Comprehensive Plan regarding the Functional Classification of Cedar Brook 

Way.  

 

Julia offered to answer Council questions. 

 

Mayor Mays opened the public hearing to receive testimony. 

 

Susan Claus came forward and stated she would like a point of order and said the Council has a 

letter that indicates property owners in the area are supporters, endorsements of Keith Mays running 

for Mayor or have contributed money. Mrs. Claus requested Mayor Mays recuse himself. 

 

Mayor Mays replied that he did not believe there was any proposed or alleged conflict of interest. 

 

Mrs. Claus continued and stated that 5 of the affected property owners, 2 were supporters of the 

Mayor in the October 2012 Gazette and questioned that Mayor Mays can deliver an unbiased 

decision. Mrs. Claus asked if she could ask the attorney what the process is. Mr. Elsner stated he 

would respond upon the request of the Council. Mrs. Claus continued and said the process in all of 

this has been problematic from the beginning and our property is being bisected by this proposed 

road and at a point at the Planning Commission level we were told that everyone was going to get 

together or at least we were going to get together with the staff and try and work some kind of a 

7



DRAFT 

City Council Minutes 
October 2, 2012 
Page 6 of 15 

situation out. Mrs. Claus stated staff waited until the day before the hearing, September 10th, and the 

11th was the hearing, and met with us for 40 minutes and said there is no proportionality that the City 

contemplates in any of this and that somehow we are to bridge a gully that is there, plus bring it 

through the middle of our property at our own expense with some reimbursement contemplated by 

the City that is capped by some extensive crazy calculation that will happen at the time and yet you 

still have in your code, reimbursement districts that you could invoke. Mrs. Claus stated you could put 

something together that delivered proportionality. Mrs. Claus stated she has two accesses on her 

home place and on another piece of property that is impacted by this, deeded accesses. Mrs. Claus 

said it wasn’t until the last meeting, September 11th that DKS representative admitted that his original 

report did not correctly reflect our deeded accesses. Mrs. Claus stated part of her objection and her 

point is that we are putting in a collector road from Meinecke all the way to Elwert on some properties 

that have already given up their access rights, whether it’s a reservation of right or a deeded access, 

to the highway and the proposal, she guesses, is that she and Mr. Claus are to use their access 

points to bring that City street over to the highway and that its going to be an access point 

that…….Mrs. Claus continued and said she knows you (the City) doesn’t want to pay for the property 

right that we own and she knows this has been pushed through and all the ODOT personnel involved 

with access and the previous Oregon access project that went through, have not been informed of 

this project. Mrs. Claus said the left hand doesn’t know what the right hand is doing and you’ve had 

planners at ODOT involved and not the access people.  

 

Eugene Stewart 22595 SW Pine Street Sherwood came forward and stated he noticed the notice that 

the City sent to DLCD, Notice of Proposed Amendment, says this is a transportation system plan 

amendment, but if you look at part 2 of your plan, chapter 6, goal 2, policy 2, “the City shall maintain 

a transportation plan map that shows the functional classification of all streets within the Sherwood 

Urban Growth Area, changes to the functional classification of streets must be approved through an 

amendment of the Sherwood Comprehensive Plan, part 2, chapter 6, transportation element”. Mr. 

Stewart asked what is this and said he did not understand why your saying this is an amendment to 

the TSP and within your ordinance you say its an amendment to your plan. Mr. Stewart stated also 

on the document sent to DLCD you reference applicable statewide planning goals, is goal 1 and that 

is citizen involvement. Mr. Stewart referenced part 3, that is the code part that you have recorded and 

it says, “the code shall be administered in conjunction with and in a manner that is consistent with the 

policies and strategies that are adopted in the City of Sherwood Oregon community development 

plan, part 2 of the city comprehensive plan”. Mr. Stewart continued and said if you look through part 2 

of the comprehensive plan, chapter 1, page 1, “the community development plan when adopted 

together with the background data and analysis part 1 and community zoning and development code, 

part 3, will constitute the city of Sherwood’s comprehensive plan. The Sherwood’s comprehensive 

plan consists of three parts, background data and analysis, the community development plan and 

community zoning and development code. Parts 1 and 2 are organized in sections relating to the 7 

major topics of the plan of which the first is citizen and agency participation in the planning process”. 

Mr. Stewart stated, also in part 2 under definitions, you have CAC as Citizen Advisory Committee, a 

committee responsible for the 1989 Comprehensive Plan update and several times, I’ve been told 

this is the Planning Commission. Mr. Stewart said the CCI is the committee for citizen involvement in 

the City known as the Sherwood Citizen Planning Advisory Committee, which symbolizes SCPAC. 

Mr. Stewart then referenced chapter 2, the planning process under citizen involvement, “the City of 

Sherwood is committed to maintaining a creative and responsive planning process which assures the 

opportunity for the involvement of all parties affected by development decisions in the urban growth 

boundary consistent with LCDC goal 1. To that end the city has adopted the citizens involvement 

plan outlining how it intends to assure opportunity for citizen involvement in the planning process, the 

8



DRAFT 

City Council Minutes 
October 2, 2012 
Page 7 of 15 

goals of the program are as follows. To ensure opportunity for citizens to be involved in all phases”,  

and also references part 1. Mr. Stewart said what’s interesting to him is part 2 and part 1, the 

ordinance that created this originally was repealed and replaced with what you now have, code part 

2. Mr. Stewart asked what is the citizen involvement plan and said he does not think, if you look at 

the statewide goals, the few meetings you had, did not meet what the City had said originally and 

what the state wants you to follow.  

 

Jim Claus 22211 SW Pacific Hwy Sherwood came forward and submitted documents to the City 

Recorder for the record (see record, Exhibits C & D) and stated the fact of the matter is you lie, staff 

lies and falsifies reports. Mr. Claus stated he called ODOT today and Seth Brumley (spelling?) has 

ok’d this and said he spoke with his supervisor, Pennington and she indicated it was not in the 

system and did not know what Mr. Claus was talking about. Mr. Claus commented regarding the 

conversation he had with ODOT staff and an incorrect code number, Mr. Claus stated this was a 

minor lie and there is nothing you can do about it given sovereign immunity, but you do not have 

ODOT clearance. Mr. Claus stated he spoke with Loretta Keefer (spelling?) and said she is the 

access manager for this district and he commented regarding the conversation he had with her 

regarding 3 deeded ingress and egresses and the 74th exemption and having to be paid for. Mr. 

Claus continued to inform the Council of his conversation with Ms. Keefer and made reference to the 

Broadhurst’s and Nathan Doyel and Mr. Doyel entering the highway illegally and moving 6 feet of fill, 

building a parking lot and converting the use and continuing to enter 99w. Mr. Claus stated his point 

is LCDC thinks this is a land use hearing and said he spoke with her today and she had no 

knowledge of what Mr. Claus was speaking of and referenced changing access oregon’s agreement. 

Mr. Claus commented regarding Mayor Mays, according to the County Commissioners, trying to get 

that 20 acres rezoned around the traffic circle which they did not know of. Mr. Claus commented 

regarding having a simple system where you parcel in the information in various agencies and their 

management doesn’t know about them. Mr. Claus said Garret’s (spelling?) people had no idea you 

intended to walk away from access oregon and the multimillion grant you received, over the last 

Langer transaction on Home Depot and it being light industrial and then turning into a lumber yard 

that needed a stop light. Mr. Claus said now we have another one out here and the same way. Mr. 

Claus stated the City has not notified anybody and no one in management knows what you are 

doing. Mr. Claus stated the games up and he thought there has been notification of agencies and 

there is not. He thought the City was straightening the facts and getting files right, and you are not. 

Mr. Claus concluded saying this is fantasy land, commented regarding staff having this down to 

perfection and informed the Council and Mayor Mays to never tell him what to do or his family.  

 

Mara Broadhurst 28440 SW Ladd Hill Rd Sherwood came forward and stated their property is 

located between the Elks and the Claus strip and when they first started working on the property in 

1999 it was about 10 acres, the top 6 acres off Elwert were residential and the bottom four acres on 

99w were commercial. Mrs. Broadhurst stated they brought in Renaissance Homes to develop the 

residential land along with the Peterson property and we retained the commercial land. It was 

determined through subdivision approvals that the old access from Elwert would no longer cut down 

through the commercial to 99w and that Bushong would handle the residential traffic connectivity, we 

kept our 99w access easement on the Claus strip which was the old access to Marion Hosler’s 

property they bought from Centex. ODOT was consolidating accesses onto 99w as no one wanted 

Sherwood to function like Tigard and it was determined that there would be only one access to 99w 

between Meinecke and Sunset. The other properties with existing businesses or houses could use 

their accesses until they wanted to develop or change use. Since our property had no existing 

building we couldn’t use or develop until this access was determined. In 2005 we were very happy 

9



DRAFT 

City Council Minutes 
October 2, 2012 
Page 8 of 15 

Cedar Brook Way was finally established on the transportation plan and many current objections 

should have been made at that time. Also at that time the Elks property was not included as ODOT 

didn’t want cut-through traffic from 99w to Elwert through residential. In 2007 we initiated a meeting 

between the property owners, Julie Hajduk and Tom Pessemier were present and Commissioner 

Allen attended the second meeting. We were trying to develop our property and had our engineers, 

AKS draw up plans to show how the access could work on locations at least 990 feet from the 

Meinecke signal, either all on our property as the plan shows or with the Claus strip, but there was 

not enough cooperation to designate a specific plan. This situation has made development of our 

property practically impossible, the only thing the property owners do seem to agree on is that the 

City told us the road would be paid for. The path of Cedar Brook Way doesn’t change on the other 

properties, just the designation from local street to collector, thereby making the promise payback 

possible. The new extension of Cedar Brook Way cuts our property, our four acres of general 

commercial in two pieces. Our main concern is that it is no longer suitable for a big box development 

and some flexibility in zoning should be allowed. The upper two acres may have to develop as 

apartment land and we want to make sure that would be possible as an allowed secondary use or a 

PUD. We would also like to know how the utilities are planned so we can all develop. Mrs. 

Broadhurst asked to please be as specific as possible and do not leave the property owners arguing 

amongst themselves. Development has been stifled in this area as the rest of the City moves on. The 

inclusion of 18 acres of residential land onto Cedar Brook Way allows changes to the access point as 

it can now be 990 feet from Sunset as well. How will this be determined and able to proceed without 

problems. If there is to be a future signal the logical place is midway between the existing signals and 

the approximate 18 acres of residential and the 18 acres of commercial divided in half with the ever 

popular question of how will it be paid for. Mrs. Braodhurst stated they would like to thank the 

Planning Commission and the staff for taking extra time and meeting to explain the road paybacks 

and hope that the City Council can further the process through a resolution. We would very much like 

to be able to develop our land and get some services to that part of Sherwood and we need some 

concrete facts. Any direction the Council could give the staff to address cost and design issues to 

build Cedar Brook Way would greatly help the property owners understand what’s necessary to 

develop and how this plan affects them. I think the extension of Cedar Brook Way to Elwert is best for 

Sherwood and the paybacks make it possible and fair for everyone.  

 

Mayor Mays thanked Mrs. Broadhurst for her eloquent testimony, clear of the facts as they have lived 

them. Mayor Mays stated from his perspective, as one of seven, if the Council supports this proposed 

ordinance and Planning Commission recommendation, the next step would be to have conversations 

about selecting an alignment and working with property owners for easements to help continue to 

reduce barriers so development can occur with what property owners want to develop. Mayor Mays 

stated this is an important part of what a City Council should do, and this would be the first steps in 

getting there and if Council supports the amendment then we can take the next steps. 

 

Deborah Cherachanko 17919 SW Handley Street Sherwood came forward and stated she has lived 

on Handley for about four years and never received notice about anything about the street for any 

reason and is here for another basic reason. Ms. Cherachanko said how you connect Cedar Brook 

Way is how everyone will have to agree to do it, and how its decided on what the properties will be 

allowed to do and not do is not my business. Living on Handley is as wide as a freeway and you can’t 

park on my side of the street in the Vineyards, I’m the property that the young lady backed out of and 

ended up in the hospital because someone was doing 45 on Handley. Ms. Cherachanko stated 

however you do this we would love to have some way to control traffic that doesn’t involve taking 

down license plate numbers and calling the police, which is what we currently do. I don’t know if it 

10



DRAFT 

City Council Minutes 
October 2, 2012 
Page 9 of 15 

involves one more stop sign at Stein in front of my house, when you connect Cedar Brook Way, it 

would be helpful to at least the people in the apartments on 99 so they don’t have to come out of 

there and only turn right, it would be nice for them to come out to a light and make a choice. I don’t 

know if this would add a tremendous amount of traffic in my neighborhood, but even if it does 

increase the traffic a bit it would be nice if the City Council could figure out a way for us to reduce the 

speeds or at least enforce the 25mph before someone gets killed. Ms. Cherachanko stated she did 

not care what you do with Cedar Brook Way, and asked if there’s a way to control speeds that don’t 

require police to sit and monitor and people doing what they have been to try and do that.  

 

Mayor Mays replied fundamentally you want the general public to follow the speed limit and be safe 

in every part of our community. 

 

Ms. Cherachanko commented about the new school in the neighborhood and children not paying 

attention and getting into the street. She commented about how ever the parcels are configured it 

may add to the traffic on Handley as it’s the best route from Elwert to 99.  

 

Mayor Mays thanked Ms. Cherachanko for her comments and said the Council has heard her 

concerns as has City Manager Gall and we will see what we can do.  

 

Ken Shannon 22275 SW Pacific Hwy Sherwood came forward and stated he owns the antique mall 

and trading post and has seven acres. Mr. Shannon stated he did not know how the road will go 

across his property but was in favor of alternate 3 for the right in/right out as we’ve fought very hard 

for this for many years. He said ODOT has finally signed off on it so we can get it, this is extremely 

important to us. Mr. Shannon stated this is a start to getting this area developed and it has been a 

problem developing as no one knows how to get on or get off the properties. Mr. Shannon stated he 

has tried to have meetings with the landowners and it’s not working. Mr Shannon stated he has been 

out here for forty years and is concerned how it’s going to be paid for. He said he is not a developer 

and will not be and will listen to ideas presented by the city pertaining to his property, and said to be 

sure to bring a checkbook. He said he will stay there for a long time and will put his land in a family 

trust, he doesn’t care and is very happy there. Mr. Shannon stated we have to know the alignment 

and we have to know where the road is going to go and how it will cross our property and for the 

most part, I think, this is a waste of good land, but we have to have the access out there. I know from 

where you (the Council) stands it would be nice if the property owners could get together and make 

something work. Mr. Shannon stated he will do his best with it and is in support of something starting 

and feels this is a start. 

 

Mr. Shannon asked to make a complaint as he did not arrive in time for Citizen Comments and 

commented regarding the small print size of text in the Tigard Times being difficult to read in trying to 

read what Sherwood is doing. Mayor Mays replied he would see what he could do.  

 

With no other testimony received, Mayor Mays closed the public hearing.  

 

Mayor Mays asked City attorney Paul Elsner regarding the bias comments received earlier this 

evening, and said for the past fifteen years he has spoken with every one of these property owners 

about this part of town, the road and access and he has not had much to say for the past few years. 

Because of these conversations, whether they support him or oppose him politically, is there any 

concern. 

 

11



DRAFT 

City Council Minutes 
October 2, 2012 
Page 10 of 15 

Mr. Elsner replied this is a legislative matter, not a quasi-judicial matter and there is absolutely no 

concern on his part nor should there be on anyone’s part.  

 

Mayor Mays stated as he alluded to, after he was elected Mayor, he tried along with Planning 

Commission Chair Pat Allen and staff to get property owners together to try and help things along 

and there was clearly no desire to reach a similar agreement. Mayor Mays stated we then learned of 

problems with ODOT’s transportation planning rule that put great restrictions on this part of our 

community and limited the ability for it to be developed and reduce barriers, but because of them 

realizing errors to the transportation planning rule and changes they are making, this has enabled us 

to start the conversation, concluding to this first chapter today. 

 

Mayor Mays asked if Council would like for him to recuse….City attorney Elsner interjected and said 

he sees no reason to and recommended Mayor Mays not recuse himself.  

 

Mayor Mays asked staff if they wanted to respond to the testimony received. 

 

Julia Hajduk came forward and stated ODOT was contacted and notified in accordance to our normal 

agency notification and with the proper staff person. Julia stated we don’t notify at the top, the chief 

operator, PGE or the Governor, we notify the person that is identified as the staff contact and said 

they did provide a response. 

 

Mayor Mays commented he has spoken with Pat Garrett the head of ODOT about our community.   

 

Julia stated another clarification and said this isn’t anything other than a transportation system plan 

amendment identifying (Julie referenced her presentation), changing the functional classification from 

a local to a collector, clarifying that there will be connection points to Elwert and Handley, it’s 

confirming that there will be one access to 99w, ultimately that would have to go through a process 

with ODOT to determine where and how that is designed and there would be additional review and 

it’s confirming that Bushong Terrace is still on the potential map for a local street connection. That’s 

it, it’s not changing zones, it’s not identifying alignments, it’s not designing the road, it’s not identifying 

who’s paying, this is not appropriate for a TSP amendment. Julia stated she wanted to stress that, as 

Mayor Mays said, this is something that could happen at a later date. Julia stated the Planning 

Commission was supportive of that concept and if that is something that the Council wants to 

recommend through a separate motion or a resolution at a future date we can certainly do that.   

 

Councilor Folsom confirmed that at this time we are not determining who is paying. Julia replied that 

is correct, this transportation system plan does not determine who pays or how and said there are 

options that are opened up by this TSP amendment because it would be a local street, it allows it to 

be creditable for City Transportation SDC’s as well as County TDT. 

 

Community Development Director Tom Pessemier interjected and said Julia meant collector not 

local. Julia confirmed. 

 

Julia offered to answer questions. 

 

Councilor Henderson confirmed Cedar Brook Way as listed has been on the TSP since 2005. Julia 

confirmed. 

 

12



DRAFT 

City Council Minutes 
October 2, 2012 
Page 11 of 15 

Councilor Langer stated he had clarifying comments and questions and stated this is not a new and 

additional street, is that correct. Julia replied that is correct.  

 

Mr. Langer stated all we are doing tonight is changing the designation. Julia replied yes and clarifying 

the connection points. 

 

Mr. Langer stated construction costs have been a big concern as he has heard this from residents 

and said previously, under the previous designation, who would have had to bear 100% of the costs. 

Julia replied if it’s not a collector and if it’s not eligible for City SDC’s or County TDT’s, ultimately it’s 

the developer, the property owner that is responsible.  

 

Mr. Langer said before this amendment the residents would have had to pay 100% of the cost of the 

construction of the road and receive zero credits for transportation fees and with this new designation 

as a collector they will be able to receive credits for land dedication and cost of construction, with 

some limits, very specific limits on how that works. Is this correct?  

 

Julia replied that is correct and said this is actually in your packet, it’s a memo in response to some 

questions the Planning Commission had on this issue, it is part of Exhibit 1-K and City Engineer Bob 

Galati prepared a memo identifying how SDC’s, City and County credits are applied, see pages 175 

and 176 of your packet.  

 

Mr. Langer stated so while tonight’s actions and discussion don’t necessarily get into exact dollars 

and what it might cost, it’s certainly going to be a net less cost to the property owner because they 

will receive significant credits back against their transportation fees. Julie replied that is our 

expectation. 

 

City attorney Elsner replied in reference to Mr. Langer comments about receiving credits and said 

they would be eligible for. 

 

Mr. Langer stated there is concern over the timing of when the road will be built and said his 

understanding is that the road will not be constructed until the property owner decides to develop 

their property at which time their private engineering firm would design the road and their contractors 

will construct it. 

 

Mayor Mays replied unless someone else steps in to do it and said what you are suggesting is the 

current obligation, but other entities could do it in the future. It could be the City, it could be a 

neighbor, it could be another project or an adjoining property that reaches an agreement with their 

neighbor to build the road to facilitate whatever they are doing. 

 

Councilor Langer stated the point he wanted to make is that the City is not going to go in and decide 

to build a road on their own and force the property owner, for example, the antique mall isn’t going to 

be forced to shut down because a street is going to be built through the middle of them. Julia replied 

this is correct. 

 

Julia added that if a road project were proposed on an adjacent property or some future City action, 

there would be a public process and there would be negotiations, it’s not like the property would be 

taken because it’s on the transportation system plan, there would be a process and people would 

have influence on how that road alignment would happen. 

13



DRAFT 

City Council Minutes 
October 2, 2012 
Page 12 of 15 

 

Mr. Langer stated there is concern from the property owners that their existing access points could 

be shut down tomorrow. Mr. Langer stated although this was not said, he’s taking it a step further in 

asking and said he doesn’t see this happening and said they would only be shut down when and if 

the property owner decides to develop their property and Cedar Brook Way is constructed. Is that 

correct? Julia replied that is correct and was a concern raised by some at the Planning Commission 

hearing, that even if the road goes through as properties developed, that’s when their accesses 

would be closed, it’s not going to happen automatically and it’s not going to happen until 

development occurs. 

 

Mr. Langer stated and that would be in a process where the property owner would control the destiny 

of their access because they would then have access off Cedar Brook Way to either of the two lights 

or the new access point at the 990 feet middle. Julia replied correct.  

 

Mr. Langer stated either way they control their own destiny. Julia confirmed.  

 

Mr. Langer stated there was concern over alignment and heard specifically, “my property will be cut 

in half and doesn’t make it as developable as possible”, and said we are not determining alignment in 

this process and it will be determined in a secondary process to follow and the property owners will 

get to have input on that and agree so that the alignment is to the best of their property and interest. 

 

Julia replied yes and said if it doesn’t happen through a formal alignment process, separate meetings 

that are directed of staff to have discussions and try and identify an alignment, as discussed this 

evening, then it would be as development occurs and the property owner, developer at the time, 

would identify how it works best for their project and their alignment. They would need to show how 

they are not completely messing up their adjacent neighbors, but it is up to them as development 

occurs. 

 

Councilor Langer in closing stated tonight all we are doing is changing the designation of a local 

street to a collector and financially benefiting the property owners substantially, because before they 

would have had to pay for the entire street and now they are eligible for credits. 

 

Councilor Folsom stated as a follow up to Councilor Langer’s comments, not tonight but in the future, 

any accommodation that might need to be made with zoning, if the property is divided would be done 

in some future process. Julia replied absolutely, this is not a zone change, it may be something that 

people want to request in the future, there would be another public process, agency notice, DLCD 

notice, we would be looking at transportation impacts with that zone change then come back to the 

Planning Commission and Council for a decision, if that were proposed. 

 

Councilor Butterfield stated we as Council in general want as much public input as we can get, we 

want input from the owners. We are basing our decisions, not only with staff information but with 

information coming from the citizens and we take that in high regard and we will never shut down the 

opportunity for a citizen to have input. 

 

Mayor Mays thanked staff for their hard work and engaging the community and property owners and 

thanked the Planning Commission as well. 

 

Mayor Mays asked for comments from the Council on the proposed ordinance, none were received.  

14



DRAFT 

City Council Minutes 
October 2, 2012 
Page 13 of 15 

He asked for comments from City Manager Gall, none were received. 

 

Mayor Mays stated as we talk about important duties and responsibilities of the Council and 

improving our infrastructure and enabling development to occur in our City in a reasonable fashion, 

removing barriers is part of our charge, which does not compel anyone to accelerate, require 

development to occur as people can do what they want with their property when they want to, but this 

is a great step for our community. 

 

With no other comments from the Council the following motion was received.  

 

MOTION: FROM COUNCILOR MATT LANGER TO READ CAPTION AND ADOPT ORDINANCE 

2012-012, SECONDED BY COUNCILOR ROBYN FOLSOM, ALL PRESENT COUNCIL MEMBERS 

VOTED IN FAVOR 6:0, (DAVE GRANT WAS ABSENT). 

Mayor Mays addressed the next agenda item. 

9. CITY MANAGER REPORT 

 

City Manager Joe Gall informed the Council the City auditors were working at City Hall and would be 

there for the next two weeks. Mr. Gall reminded that this Friday is First Friday in Old Town and Home 

Coming was also this Friday and said old town merchants would be hosting tailgating events. 

 

Mr. Gall informed the Council that he attended the LOC Conference last week with a number of staff 

and Mayor Mays and the City was recognized and asked Human Resource Manager Anna Lee to 

provide a report to the Council on employee safety. Anna reported Sherwood was recognized with a 

Silver Award through the League of Oregon Cities and our insurance carrier, CIS. Anna stated these 

awards don’t come to every City and is dedicated by the leadership of Sherwood and employees. 

Anna stated we take employee safety very seriously while on the job, and we initiated programs to 

help this and we have a safety committee that is comprised of representatives from every City 

department. Anna said the committee members receive training from CIS to be safety ambassadors 

to the City and the committee members conduct quarterly building inspections on all City facilities to 

ensure we have an environment that promotes safety. Anna informed the Council of our ergonomic 

program and active return to work program and explained because of these programs the City was 

recognized at the League of Oregon Cities. 

 

Mayor Mays congratulated staff for their work and promotion of safety and reported the City also 

received the Governor’s Fitness Award for the Field House. And he would pass this onto Community 

Services Director Kristen Switzer. 

 

Mayor Mays addressed the next agenda item. 

  

10. COUNCIL ANNOUNCEMENTS 

 

Councilor Henderson reminded the community of the upcoming Halloween Hill Climb which is a 

fundraiser for Sherwood Main Street, organized by Hungry Raccoon, scheduled for October 21st. Ms. 

Henderson stated this is a family friendly event.  

15



DRAFT 

City Council Minutes 
October 2, 2012 
Page 14 of 15 

Ms. Henderson reported last week there was a fatality accident on Roy Rogers road and was unsure 

if Sherwood responded to the accident and wanted to send condolences to the families involved, the 

public safety employees that responded to the accident and the bystanders that stepped in to help. 

 

Councilor Folsom stated as a citizen and appreciative of her position as a Council member, she 

would like to comment regarding what she has heard in the community regarding what businesses 

are or are not coming into Sherwood, and after recently attending an Economic Summit, said it is not 

the place of the Council nor can  we regulate the businesses that choose to locate here. Ms. Folsom 

stated we have code and compliances in places and has received comments from community 

members that she and the Council cannot let this happen. 

 

Ms. Folsom reported on the Sherwood Senior Center and said they are in desperate need of 

volunteers to help with lunch and they also need drivers, between the times of 10:30am and 1:30pm 

and said she is aware City staff is working on putting something together to help out. Ms. Folsom 

stated they are also holding a raffle trying to meet their fundraising goal for the year.  

 

Ms. Folsom reported the Sherwood Cultural Arts Commission will be meeting this Thursday evening 

at City Hall and will be discussing their future and how they continue to serve the community. Ms. 

Folsom informed the Council of some of the commissions topics of discussion; how to introduce 

public art into the community and other past projects and said she really appreciates the members of 

the commission for their desire to make a contribution and impact as we move forward. 

 

Ms. Folsom reminded of the upcoming Harvest Festival to be held at the Sherwood Middle School on 

October 20th, from 4-9pm and encouraged the community to attend. 

 

Ms. Folsom reported Disney’s Little Mermaid tickets are now on sale and the event is scheduled for 

Nov 2 and 3rd at 7:30pm, and 2:30pm and 7:30pm on Saturday, tickets can be purchased at Let’s 

Make Music or VPAfoundation.org. 

 

Councilor Clark reported this Saturday and Sunday there is a Good Samaritan event at the Sherwood 

Senior Center, it is a senior center outreach through Providence, the program supports senior who 

stay in their homes, with yard work and home maintenance. Ms. Clark stated the program used to be 

on Saturday and they have expanded the program to include Sunday. Ms. Clark stated you can sign 

up through Mark Federspiel with Providence or just show up, the event starts at 8am on Saturday 

with a breakfast and people will be assigned to a crew that will service Sherwood and parts of King 

City. Sunday’s service will start at 9am and people are to meet at the Grocery Outlet. 

 

Councilor Langer reported Saturday Oct 13th is the 26th Annual Great Onion Festival organized by the 

Sherwood Chamber of Commerce and said the famous Fireman’s chicken will be served brought by 

Old Town Rotary, the event will be held at Archer Glen Elementary. 

 

Councilor Langer reminded that starting in November the Sherwood Chamber of Commerce will be 

starting to organize the Sherwood map that will market and locate businesses and landmarks, Mr. 

Langer stated those interested can contact Nancy Bruton at the Chamber.  

 

Mayor Mays reminded of the upcoming high School Booster Club Auction to be held on October 27th, 

and stated this event raises funds for Sherwood sports youth groups. 

 

16



DRAFT 

City Council Minutes 
October 2, 2012 
Page 15 of 15 

Police Captain Ty Hanlon reported on an upcoming event also on October 13th, Tip a Cop, to be held 

at the Sherwood Red Robin from 11am to 8pm, proceeds benefit Special Olympics. 

 

Mayor Mays reported he and staff attended a PGE event along with Washington County elected 

officials. The event was for first responders to storm events to review areas that need improvements 

and communications.  

 

Mayor Mays reported lots of progress was made with the Habitat for Humanity’s project in Newberg a 

few weeks ago.  

 

Councilor Folsom added the Sherwood Cultural Arts Commission produced an Arts Calendar and 

they are available in the library.  

 

Mayor Mays added several Council members attended the Greater Portland Inc. Economic Summit 

recently and discussions were held on regional efforts and pointing the business community and local 

governments in the same direction to attract businesses and help new businesses to start and 

support existing ones.   

 

11. ADJOURN 

 

Mayor Mays adjourned at 8:27 pm. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Submitted by: 

 

 

              

Sylvia Murphy, CMC, City Recorder    Keith S. Mays, Mayor 

 

17



DRAFT  

City Council Minutes 
October 16, 2012 
Page 1 of 2 

 

SHERWOOD CITY COUNCIL MINUTES 

22560 SW Pine St., Sherwood, Or 

October 16, 2012 

 

CITY COUNCIL WORK SESSION 

 

1. CALL TO ORDER: Mayor Mays called the meeting to order at 6:11 pm. 

 

2. COUNCIL PRESENT: Mayor Keith Mays, Councilors Bill Butterfield, Matt Langer, Robyn Folsom 

and Linda Henderson. Councilors Dave Grant and Krisanna Clark were absent. 

  

3. STAFF PRESENT: City Manager Joe Gall, Community Development Director Tom Pessemier, 

Police Chief Jeff Groth, Finance Director Craig Gibons, City Engineer Bob Galati, Public Works 

Director Craig Sheldon, Planning Manager Julia Hajduk, Planning Department Program 

Coordinator Kirsten Allen.  

 
4. OTHERS PRESENT: Ray Pitz with the Sherwood Gazette and Findley Merritt with the Oregonian.   

 
5. TOPICS DISCUSSED:  

 
A.  Alcohol Use in Public Parks.  Police Chief Jeff Groth gave a presentation regarding Alcohol 

Use in Public and Parks (see record, Exhibit A) and explained contradicting language in the 

Municipal Code.  Chief Groth provided revised language changes and a Parks Alcohol Permit 

process (see record, Exhibit B & C).  Discussion followed. 

 

B. Downtown Street Improvements.  City Engineer Bob Galati gave an update on the 

Downtown Streetscapes Phase 2 (see record, Exhibit D).  Bob explained the project status, 

expected timeline, design decisions, and possible phasing of the project.  Discussion followed.   

 
C. Southwest Corridor Plan Update.  Planning Manager Julia Hajduk gave a presentation (see 

record, Exhibit E) concerning the Southwest Corridor Plan Update and explained that the 

corridor goes from Portland to Sherwood.  Julia informed that the Plan is a new way of doing 

corridor planning using local land use plans which includes the Sherwood Town Center Plan.  

Julia explained that Sherwood does not have the density to support mass transit and the 

transit options for Sherwood discussed are bus rapid transit.  Julia provided information 

regarding the plan (see record, Exhibit F, G, & H) and asked for feedback from the Council 

regarding the long term to ensure that staff does not remove items that the Council wants. 

Discussion followed.   

 

D. Financial Update.  Finance Director Craig Gibons informed that Washington County released 

a set of tax numbers indicating that the City’s assessed value will go up 1.8% to $1,546 million 

and the first indications are that tax revenue will come in on budget. Craig provided graphs 

18



DRAFT  

City Council Minutes 
October 16, 2012 
Page 2 of 2 

showing real market and assessed value and commented that the annual increase in 

assessed value has steadily decreased over time (see record, Exhibit I).   

 

E. Snyder Park Turf Field.   Public Works Director Craig Sheldon commented that the Turf Field 

at Snyder Park may be beyond repair and that estimates to make repairs, using turf that may 

not match, are around $66,000 including a 20% contingency.  Craig explained that the field 

was expected to last 8-10 years and it has been twelve years.  Craig informed that to replace 

the field would cost roughly $545,000 and the work could be done after the La Crosse season 

in June or July. Discussion followed.   

 

6. ADJOURN: Mayor Mays adjourned the work session at 7:59 pm.  

 

 
 

Submitted by: 
 
 
 
             
Kirsten Allen, Dept. Program Coord.   Keith S. Mays, Mayor  
           
 
 

19



DRAFT 

Resolution 2012-054 
November 14, 2012 
Page 1 of 1 

 
 

RESOLUTION 2012-054 
 
A RESOLUTION REAPPOINTING LYNN SNYDER TO THE PARKS AND 
RECREATION BOARD 
 
WHEREAS, Lynn Snyder was appointed to the Parks and Recreation Board by 
Resolution 2010-046 and has served a two year term; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Parks and Recreation Board currently has vacancies and Lynn Snyder 
has requested reappointment; and  
 
WHEREAS, Council Liaison Bill Butterfield, and the Chair of the Parks Board, with 
assistance of staff, are recommending Lynn Snyder for reappointment; and 
 
WHEREAS, according to Chapter 2.16 of the Sherwood Municipal Code, members of 
the Parks and Recreation Board shall be appointed by the Mayor with consent of the 
City Council.  
 
NOW, THEREFORE, THE CITY OF SHERWOOD RESOLVES AS FOLLOWS: 
 
 Section 1.  The Mayor is authorized to reappoint Lynn Snyder to a two year term, 
expiring November 2014. 
 
 Section 2. This Resolution shall be effective upon its approval and adoption. 
 
 
Duly passed by the City Council this 14th day of November 2012. 
 

 

 

        __________________________ 

        Keith S. Mays, Mayor 
 
 
Attest: 
 

 

________________________________ 

Sylvia Murphy, CMC, City Recorder 

20



DRAFT 

Resolution 2012-055 
November 14, 2012 
Page 1 of 1 

 
 

RESOLUTION 2012-055 
 
A RESOLUTION REAPPOINTING MARNEY JETT TO THE PARKS AND 
RECREATION BOARD 
 
WHEREAS, Marney Jett was appointed to the Parks and Recreation Board by 
Resolution 2010-047 and has served a two year term; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Parks and Recreation Board currently has vacancies and Marney Jett 
has requested reappointment; and  
 
WHEREAS, Council Liaison Bill Butterfield, and the Chair of the Parks Board, with 
assistance of staff, are recommending Marney Jett for reappointment; and 
 
WHEREAS, according to Chapter 2.16 of the Sherwood Municipal Code, members of 
the Parks and Recreation Board shall be appointed by the Mayor with consent of the 
City Council.  
 
NOW, THEREFORE, THE CITY OF SHERWOOD RESOLVES AS FOLLOWS: 
 
 Section 1.  The Mayor is authorized to reappoint Marney Jett to a two year term, 
expiring November 2014. 
 
 Section 2. This Resolution shall be effective upon its approval and adoption. 
 
 
Duly passed by the City Council this 14th day of November 2012. 
 

 

 

        __________________________ 

        Keith S. Mays, Mayor 
 
 
Attest: 
 

 

________________________________ 

Sylvia Murphy, CMC, City Recorder 

21



 

Ordinance 2012-013, Staff Report 
November 14, 2012 
Page 1 of 1 
 

Council Meeting Date: November 14, 2012 
 

Agenda Item: New Business 
 

TO:  Sherwood City Council 
 
FROM: Craig Sheldon, Public Works Director 
 
THROUGH: City Attorney, David Doughman 
 
SUBJECT: ORDINANCE 2012-013, DECLARING CERTAIN SIDEWALKS IN THE CITY TO 
BE DEFECTIVE UNDER SHERWOOD MUNICIPAL CODE CHAPTER 12.08 AND 
RATIFYING PRIOR ACTS WITH RESPECT TO SUCH SIDEWALKS 
 
ISSUE: City staff put before Council a resolution when in fact it should have been an ordinance. 
 
BACKGROUND: On August 7, 2012, City staff submitted to Council Resolution 2012-038 A 
resolution approving repair of concrete sidewalks within the City of Sherwood. 
 

Chapter 12.08.060 – Declaration by council of defective walks as nuisance or need for 

sidewalks to be constructed - of the Sherwood Municipal Code states that the city council by 

ordinance, may declare the defective, out of repair or hazardous sidewalk a nuisance and 

direct that the defect or hazardous condition be eliminated or that said sidewalk be placed in a 

state of good repair.  

In error, staff submitted the required repairs to council for approval as a resolution. 

This ordinance clarifies and corrects the process in which the information is to be submitted to 
Council. Going forward all concrete sidewalk repair notices will be submitted by way of 
ordinance until such time as the Municipal Code is updated to correct the format in which we 
submit this work. 
 
Resolution 2012-038 remains valid and does not need to be repealed. 
 
The City is following the requirements of the code which require this information be presented 
to Council as an Ordinance. 
 
FINDINGS:  This chapter of the Code 12.08.060 was last updated in 1977 and future updates 
to this chapter would change notification to Council by resolution instead of ordinance. The City 
is looking to update this chapter early next year.  
 
RECOMMENDATION: ORDINANCE 2012-013, DECLARING CERTAIN SIDEWALKS IN 
THE CITY TO BE DEFECTIVE UNDER SHERWOOD MUNICIPAL CODE CHAPTER 12.08 
AND RATIFYING PRIOR ACTS WITH RESPECT TO SUCH SIDEWALKS 
 

22



DRAFT 

Ordinance 2012-013 
November 14, 2012 
Page 1 of 2 

 

 
 

ORDINANCE 2012-013 
 
AN ORDINANCE DECLARING CERTAIN SIDEWALKS IN THE CITY TO BE DEFECTIVE 
UNDER SHERWOOD MUNICIPAL CODE CHAPTER 12.08 AND RATIFYING PRIOR ACTS 
WITH RESPECT TO SUCH SIDEWALKS 
 
WHEREAS, the city council adopted Resolution 2012-038 on August 7, 2012; and 
 
WHEREAS, the resolution identified various properties with sidewalks in need of repair; and 
 
WHEREAS, the city has a program to provide sidewalk maintenance assistance where the city 
will generally share the cost of sidewalk repairs with participating property owners; and 
 
WHEREAS, city staff has contacted the property owners identified in Resolution 2012-038 to 
solicit their participation in the assistance program and simultaneously notify them that they 
must repair their sidewalks to city standards in accordance with SMC Chapter 12.08; and 
 
WHEREAS, SMC Chapter 12.08 requires the council to enact an ordinance to enforce the terms 
of SMC Chapter 12.08; and 
 
WHEREAS, the council intends to ratify the actions that city staff has taken pursuant to 
Resolution 2012-038, including notifying property owners of defective sidewalks that they have 
the opportunity to participate in the assistance program and that they must bring their sidewalks 
into compliance with city standards. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, THE CITY OF SHERWOOD ORDAINS AS FOLLOWS: 
 
Section 1. The council finds that the Public Works Director recommended area-by-area 

approach to addressing defective sidewalks (described in the August 7, 2012 
staff report) is consistent with the priority levels established in Resolution 2011-
097 and will most effectively and cost-efficiently promote public safety when 
balanced against competing city projects.  

 
Section 2. In accordance with SMC 12.08.060, the council declares that the sidewalks 

associated with the properties identified in Resolution 2012-038, Exhibit A are 
defective, a nuisance and must be brought into conformance with city standards 
for sidewalks. In accordance with SMC 12.08.070, city staff shall notify the 
owners of such properties that they must repair their respective sidewalks 
consistent with city standards. 

 
Section 3. The defective sidewalks must be repaired within 60 days of the date of the notice 

described in Section 2 above, unless the public works director or designee 
permits an extension. The director or designee may not permit an extension 
longer than 120 days. 

23



DRAFT 

Ordinance 2012-013 
November 14, 2012 
Page 2 of 2 

 
Section 4. The materials and specifications to be used and followed in repairing the 

sidewalks are on file with the Public Works Department. 
 
Section 5. Effective Date: This ordinance shall become effective the 30th day after its 

enactment by the City Council and approval by the Mayor. 
 
Section 6. Once it is effective, this ordinance is retroactive to August 7, 2012. 
 
 
 
Duly passed by the City Council this 14th day of November 2012.  
 
 
 
        _________________________ 
        Keith S. Mays, Mayor 
 
 
 
Attest:   
 
 
      
Sylvia Murphy, CMC, City Recorder     
 
                AYE  NAY 
         Clark       ____  ____ 
         Langer      ____  ____ 
         Butterfield  ____  ____ 
         Folsom      ____  ____ 
         Henderson ____  ____ 
         Grant        ____  ____ 
         Mays        ____  ____ 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

24



 

Ordinance 2012-014, Staff Report  
November 14, 2012 
Page 1 of 2 
 

Council Meeting Date: November 14, 2012 
 

Agenda Item: New Business 
 

TO:  Sherwood City Council 
 
FROM: Craig Sheldon, Public Works Director 
 
THROUGH: City Attorney, David Doughman 
 
SUBJECT: ORDINANCE 2012-014 AN ORDINANCE DECLARING CERTAIN SIDEWALKS 
IN THE CITY TO BE DEFECTIVE UNDER SHERWOOD MUNICIPAL CODE CHAPTER 
12.08   
 
ISSUE: Should the City notify and work with homeowners through the concrete sidewalk repair 
assistance program to complete sidewalk repairs.  
 
BACKGROUND: In 2012, the City completed an inspection of all city sidewalks and identified 
approximately 1,700 sidewalk deficiencies.   
 
Chapter 12.08 of the Sherwood Municipal Code (SMC) states that property owners abutting 
sidewalks are the responsible party for all sidewalk maintenance and repair in the City of 
Sherwood. In order to assist with sidewalk repairs, City Council asked staff to create a Sidewalk 
Repair Assistance Program to help property owners with the cost of sidewalk repair or 
replacement. Under the policy, the City will provide written notice to property owner of 
necessary sidewalk repairs or replacement, the property owner will have 60 days to comply. 
The property owner may choose to use the City’s contractor and the assistance program or use 
a contractor of their own choice, at their own cost. If the Owner chooses to use their own 
contractor, or make repairs themselves, the assistance program will not apply. 
 
City Council approved the implementation of a sidewalk maintenance fee in the 2011/12 
budget year. The fee was established to repair sidewalk deficiencies.  
 
City Council approved the program which allows for two types of repairs: shaving and/or 
replacement (per criteria outlined in the policy). The City has obtained competitive pricing for 
concrete sidewalk shaving and replacement. The City has completed the RFP process to 
obtain an arborist and a firm has been selected.   
 
City Council has determined through the assistance program that the homeowner is 
responsible for 50% of the total cost of the repair and will have up to 12 months to remit 
payment. 
 
If the owner does not correct the defect, or eliminate the hazard, or make the repairs, the City 
will construct or repair the sidewalk deficiency(s) and the Owner will be responsible for all costs 
associated with the repair including the cost of notice, engineering, advertising and attorney's 
fees, in the form of an assessment lien. 
 

25



 

Ordinance 2012-014, Staff Report  
November 14, 2012 
Page 2 of 2 
 

For the purpose of implementing the program, city staff has divided the city into four sections. 
Within these four sections, City staff identified the area with the largest amount of deficiencies 
needing to be repaired and has designated this as Area 1. Within Area 1, there are 
approximately 750 issues to be repaired. To manage this process the work load has been 
staggered to help city staff and the contractors. Within the next few months, a separate 
ordinance will be brought before council with the next section of work to be completed within 
Area 1. In the current 2012/13 budget year, there is approximately $70,000 allocated towards 
this program. Work will coincide with the funds available within the budget. If we use all the 
money allocated prior to the end of the 2012/13 budget year, the next fiscal year will continue 
with the remaining sections until work is completed in Area 1 and we begin work in Area 2.  
 
FINDINGS:  The City has deficiencies in our sidewalk system which creates safety issues. 
The Concrete Sidewalk Repair Assistance Program was implemented to assist property 
owners in making the repairs.  
 
RECOMMENDATION: ADOPTION OF ORDINANCE 2012-014 AN ORDINANCE 
DECLARING CERTAIN SIDEWALKS IN THE CITY TO BE DEFECTIVE UNDER 
SHERWOOD MUNICIPAL CODE CHAPTER 12.08. 
 

26



DRAFT 
 

Ordinance 2012-014 
November 14, 2012 
Page 1 of 2 with Exhibit A (3 pgs) 

 
 

ORDINANCE 2012-014 
 
AN ORDINANCE DECLARING CERTAIN SIDEWALKS IN THE CITY TO BE 
DEFECTIVE UNDER SHERWOOD MUNICIPAL CODE CHAPTER 12.08   
 
WHEREAS, pursuant to the Sherwood Municipal Code Section 12.08, the City of 
Sherwood (City) assigns sidewalk responsibility to abutting property owners; 
 
WHEREAS, the City approved implementation of a sidewalk maintenance repair fee in 
the 2011/12 budget year to identify and fund sidewalk repairs; 
 
WHEREAS, City Council approved Resolution 2011-097 for a Concrete Sidewalk 
Assistance Program;  
 
WHEREAS, SMC Chapter 12.08 requires the council to enact an ordinance to enforce 
the terms of SMC Chapter 12.08. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, THE CITY OF SHERWOOD ORDAINS AS FOLLOWS: 
 
Section 1. The council finds that the Public Works Director’s recommended area-by-

area approach to addressing defective sidewalks is consistent with the 
priority levels established in Resolution 2011-97 and will most effectively 
and cost-efficiently promote public safety when balanced against 
competing city projects. 

 
Section 2. In accordance with SMC 12.08.060, the council declares that the 

sidewalks associated with the properties identified in Exhibit A are 
defective, a nuisance and must be brought into conformance with city 
standards for sidewalks.  

 
Section 3. In accordance with SMC 12.08.070, city staff shall notify the owners of 

such properties that they must repair their respective sidewalks consistent 
with city standards. 

 
Section 4. The defective sidewalks must be repaired within 60 days of the date of the 

notice described in Section 2 above, unless the public works director or 
designee permits an extension. The director or designee may not permit 
an extension longer than 120 days. 

 

27



DRAFT 
 

Ordinance 2012-014 
November 14, 2012 
Page 2 of 2 with Exhibit A (3 pgs) 

Section 5. The materials and specifications to be used and followed in repairing the 
sidewalks are on file with the Public Works Department. 

 
Section 6. Effective Date: This ordinance shall become effective the 30th day after its 

enactment by the City Council and approval by the Mayor. 
 
 
Duly passed by the City Council this 14th day of November 2012.  
 
 
 
        _________________________ 
        Keith S. Mays, Mayor 
 
 
 
Attest:   
 
 
      
Sylvia Murphy, CMC, City Recorder     
 
                AYE  NAY 
         Clark       ____  ____ 
         Langer      ____  ____ 
         Butterfield  ____  ____ 
         Folsom      ____  ____ 
         Henderson ____  ____ 
         Grant        ____  ____ 
         Mays        ____  ____ 
  
 

 

28



 
Home of the Tualatin River National Wildlife Refuge 

 

 
Exhibit A 

Area 1, Section 2 
Concrete Sidewalk Repairs 

 

 

 

STREET ADDRESS CITY, STATE, ZIP 

15908 SW 2nd St Sherwood, OR 97140 

16001 SW 2nd St Sherwood, OR 97140 

23591 SW Aldergrove Ave Sherwood, OR 97140 

23598 SW Aldergrove Ave Sherwood, OR 97140 

15098 SW Barnsdale Dr Sherwood, OR 97140 

15198 SW Barnsdale Dr Sherwood, OR 97140 

14928 SW Brickyard Sherwood, OR 97140 

23242 SW Brittany Sherwood, OR 97140 

14876 SW Brooke Ct Sherwood, OR 97140 

14924 SW Brooke Ct Sherwood, OR 97140 

23210 SW Cascade Pl Sherwood, OR 97140 

23254 SW Cascade Pl Sherwood, OR 97140 

22755 SW Cochran Dr Sherwood, OR 97140 

22778 SW Cochran Sherwood, OR 97140 

14997 SW Forest Ave Sherwood, OR 97140 

22427 SW Hall Sherwood, OR 97140 

15752 SW Hawk Ct Sherwood, OR 97140 

15252 SW Highpoint Dr Sherwood, OR 97140 

15294 SW Highpoint Dr Sherwood, OR 97140 

14640 SW June Ct Sherwood, OR 97140 

22629 SW Kathy St Sherwood, OR 97140 

22656 SW Kathy St Sherwood, OR 97140 

22673 SW Kathy St Sherwood, OR 97140 

22678 SW Kathy St Sherwood, OR 97140 

22700 SW Kathy St Sherwood, OR 97140 

22722 SW Kathy St Sherwood, OR 97140 

22827 SW Kathy St Sherwood, OR 97140 

14820 SW Lowell Ln Sherwood, OR 97140 

14831 SW Lowell Ln Sherwood, OR 97140 

14832 SW Lowell Ln Sherwood, OR 97140 

14853 SW Lowell Ln Sherwood, OR 97140 

14880 SW Lowell Ln Sherwood, OR 97140 

22420 SW Lower Roy Sherwood, OR 97140 

22423 SW Lower Roy St Sherwood, OR 97140 

22483 SW Lower Roy St Sherwood, OR 97140 

22894 SW Main St Sherwood, OR 97140 

22986 SW Main St Sherwood, OR 97140 

Ordinance 2012-014, Exhibit A 

November 14, 2012, Page 1 of 3
29



 

Concrete Sidewalk Repair  

Area 1, Section 2  

  

 

STREET ADDRESS CITY, STATE, ZIP 

22995 SW Main St Sherwood, OR 97140 

22996 SW Main St Sherwood, OR 97140 

23022 SW Main St Sherwood, OR 97140 

23023 SW Main St Sherwood, OR 97140 

23046 SW Main St Sherwood, OR 97140 

23051 SW Main St Sherwood, OR 97140 

23058 SW Main St Sherwood, OR 97140 

23065 SW Main St Sherwood, OR 97140 

23077 SW Main St Spc 46 Sherwood, OR 97140 

23264 SW Main St Sherwood, OR 97140 

23305 SW Main St UNIT 1 Sherwood, OR 97140 

23455 SW Main St Apt 1 Sherwood, OR 97140 

14597 SW Major Oak Dr Sherwood, OR 97140 

14661 SW Major oaks Sherwood, OR 97140 

14692 SW Major Oak Dr Sherwood, OR 97140 

23090 SW Mansfield St Sherwood, OR 97140 

23096 SW Mansfield St Sherwood, OR 97140 

14805 SW Michael Ct Sherwood, OR 97140 

22655 SW Norton Ave Sherwood, OR 97140 

22857 SW Norton Ave Sherwood, OR 97140 

22870 SW Norton Ave Sherwood, OR 97140 

22879 SW Norton Ave Sherwood, OR 97140 

15310 SW Oregon St Sherwood, OR 97140 

22418 SW Pine St Sherwood, OR 97140 

22461 SW Pine St Sherwood, OR 97140 

23271 SW Pine St Sherwood, OR 97140 

23550 SW Pine St Sherwood, OR 97140 

14740 SW Smock St Sherwood, OR 97140 

14762 SW Smock St Sherwood, OR 97140 

14850 SW Smock St Sherwood, OR 97140 

23510 SW Stonehaven St Sherwood, OR 97140 

23797 SW Stonehaven St Sherwood, OR 97140 

23811 SW Stonehaven St Sherwood, OR 97140 

23862 SW Stonehaven St Sherwood, OR 97140 

15831 SW Sunset Ct Sherwood, OR 97140 

15861 SW Sunset Ct Sherwood, OR 97140 

15875 SW Sunset Ct Sherwood, OR 97140 

15890 SW Sunset Ct Sherwood, OR 97140 

15895 SW Sunset Ct Sherwood, OR 97140 

15939 SW Sunset Ct Sherwood, OR 97140 

15953 SW Sunset Ct Sherwood, OR 97140 

15972 SW Sunset Ct Unit 500 Sherwood, OR 97140 

22736 SW Taylor Ct Sherwood, OR 97140 

Ordinance 2012-014, Exhibit A 

November 14, 2012, Page 2 of 3
30



 

Concrete Sidewalk Repair  

Area 1, Section 2  

  

 

STREET ADDRESS CITY, STATE, ZIP 

22807 SW Upper Roy Sherwood, OR 97140 

22462 SW Washington St Sherwood, OR 97140 

22833 SW Washington St Sherwood, OR 97140 

22845 SW Washington St  Apt 105 Sherwood, OR 97140 

22857 SW Washington St Apt 165 Sherwood, OR 97140 

22897 SW Washington St Sherwood, OR 97140 

22915 SW Washington St Sherwood, OR 97140 

22932 SW Washington St Sherwood, OR 97140 

16369 SW Wildlife Haven Ct Sherwood, OR 97140 

14776 SW Willamette St Sherwood, OR 97140 

14848 SW Willamette St Sherwood, OR 97140 

14880 SW Willamette St Sherwood, OR 97140 

14933 SW Willamette St Sherwood, OR 97140 

14945 SW Willamette St Sherwood, OR 97140 

15085 SW Willamette St Sherwood, OR 97140 

15141 SW Willamette St Sherwood, OR 97140 

15183 SW Willamette St Sherwood, OR 97140 

15197 SW Willamette St Sherwood, OR 97140 

15781 SW Willow Ct Sherwood, OR 97140 

15871 SW Willow Dr Sherwood, OR 97140 

15899 SW Willow Dr Sherwood, OR 97140 

23010 SW William Ave Sherwood, OR 97140 

23046 SW William Ave Sherwood, OR 97140 

23102 SW William Ave Sherwood, OR 97140 

23118 SW William Ave Sherwood, OR 97140 

23125 SW William Ave Sherwood, OR 97140 

23147 SW William Ave Sherwood, OR 97140 

23183 SW William Ave Sherwood, OR 97140 

23267 SW William Ave Sherwood, OR 97140 

 

Ordinance 2012-014, Exhibit A 

November 14, 2012, Page 3 of 3
31



September-12 Sep-12 YTD Sep-11

Est.

Usage People People People 

Count Served* Count Served* Served

Leagues 3 294 6 924 700

Rentals 51 1122 135 2298 2850

Other (Classes) 4

[1]  Day Use 5 24 10 52 26

Total Usage 1440 3274 3580

Income Sep-12 YTD

Rentals $3,140 $7,660

League fees (indoor) $7,170 $13,016

Card fees (indoor) $60 $200

Day Use $103 $227

Advertising

Snacks $88 $311

Classes

Total $10,561 $21,414

FY 11-12

Sep-11 YTD

Rentals $1,380 $6,545

League fees (indoor) $1,395 $8,300

Card fees (indoor) $80 $270

Day Use $19 $49

Merchandise

Snacks $208 $520

Classes $280 $280

Total Income $3,362 $15,964

*Estimated number of people served

based on all rentals have a different # of

people. Along with each team will carry

a different # of people on their roster.

Monthly Report September 2012  

32



October-12 Oct-12 YTD Sep-11

Est.

Usage People People People 

Count Served* Count Served* Served

Leagues 3 294 6 1218 378

Rentals 45 1035 180 3333 2175

Other (Classes)

[1]  Day Use 8 49 18 101 75

Total Usage 1378 4652 2628

Income Oct-12 YTD

Rentals $2,949 $10,609

League fees (indoor) $500 $13,516

Card fees (indoor) $80 $280

Day Use $211 $438

Advertising

Snacks $121.75 $433

Classes

Total $3,862 $25,276

FY 11-12

Oct-11 YTD

Rentals $5,225 $11,770

League fees (indoor) $7,890 $16,190

Card fees (indoor) $280 $550

Day Use $145 $194

Merchandise

Snacks $259 $779

Classes

Total Income $13,799 $29,483

*Estimated number of people served

based on all rentals have a different # of

people. Along with each team will carry

a different # of people on their roster.

Sherwood Indoor Field House Monthly Report October 2012  

33



Active Rec Happenings during the month of September 2012 

Youth Football played 21 games at the High School field during the Month of September 

You can also find our youth cheer leaders at all the youth football games 

The youth soccer club held 20 classic games at Snyder Park during the month they also had 139 

recreational games at Hopkins, Middleton, SMS and LRMS 

Youth Volleyball practiced and played seven games at SMS, LRMS and Archer Glen during the month 

Greater Portland Soccer District played 13 adult games at Snyder Park on Sundays during the month 

Youth softball and baseball are still playing fall ball at Hopkins, the high school and at Snyder on 

Sundays. 

 

 

 

 

 

Respectfully submitted 

September 28, 2012 

Lance Gilgan 

 

 

34



 

Active Rec Happenings during the month of October 2012 

Youth Football played 20 games at the High school during the month of October finishing their regular 

season, they had four teams make the playoffs. Those teams are 5/6 cardinal, 5/6 Grey, 5/6 Red and J.V 

Black the J.V. red team is in a tie breaker to get into the play offs, another great job by our youth 

football organization.  

Youth Cheer was at all of the youth football games and will be finishing up their season at the playoffs. 

Youth Volley ball finished up their season with approximately 14 games at SMS LRMS and Archer Glen 

during the month. 

Youth softball and youth baseball finished up their fall seasons during the first part of the month 

baseball may have lost a couple of games due to the rain but all in all had great weather for the fall. 

Youth soccer held 22 classic games at Snyder Park and SMS and over 150 recreational games at Hopkins, 

SMS LRMS and Middleton during the month. Their younger kids are done but the older kids will play for 

a couple more weeks. 

Greater Portland Soccer District played 12 adult games at Snyder Park on Sundays during the month. 

Invoices will be going out to all fall sports sometime in November after I am done getting basketball off 

the ground. 

 

 

Respectfully Submitted  

October 29, 2012 

Lance Gilgan 

35



Sherwood Public Library – September 2012 
 
 

Current Yr       Past Yr       % Change 
 

 
Check out                               31,780             33,188             -4% (23% Self-check) 

 
 
Check in                                 23,257             23,724              -2%   
 

 New Library cards 119   

 Volunteer hours 199 hours (equivalent to 1.15 FTE) / 27 volunteers   
 

 Monthly Activities 
 

 Twenty-four Baby, Preschool and Toddler Storytimes (553 children /420 adults = 973 total) 
*Teresa on vacation two days 

 

 Two Read-to-the-Dogs programs  
 

 Magazine Monday (free magazine giveaway) 
 

 Pam North was elected Chair-Elect of the OLA Public Library Division Executive Board 
 

 09/03 Library closed for the Labor Day holiday 
 

 09/09 Herbalist & acupuncturist Morteza Aleali speaks on complementary cancer therapies (2 
attendees) 
 

 09/11 North attends Sherwood Chamber of Commerce meeting to present business resource 
information  
 

 09/12 All-City Staff Meeting   
 

 09/13, 20 & 27 Pattie Lamb of La Di Da Inspirations offers free Peyote Stitch beading workshops 
(10, 5 3 attendees) 
 

 09/15 Zumbatomic program with Carolyn Thompson (0 attendees) 
 

 09/22 Oregon Poet Laureate Paulann Petersen leads a “Fall in Love with Poetry” workshop (8 
attendees) 
 

 09/29 June Reynolds signs copies of her new book, “Sherwood: Tales from the Attic”  
 

 Volunteer recruitment & training continues / New volunteers started shifts 
 

 Library staff attended various regional, City and WCCLS meetings: Latino Services, WUG, Adult 
Services, Circulation, Cataloging, Executive Board, Policy Group, Public Library Directors and 
OLA/Public Library Division Board 

 

36



1  

 

CITY OF SHERWOOD POLICE DEPARTMENT 

2012 UPDATE REPORT 

3
rd

 Quarter: July-August-September 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

37



2  

 

2012 Patrol Calls For Service & Activities 

Activity Highlights 2011 Totals Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 2012 Totals 
Premise checks for 
security 

1,303 388 383 482   

Assistance provided to 
public 

856 259 293 392   

Suspicious Vehicles 584 167 148 212   
Subject Stops/contacts 397 103 119 186   
Suspicious 
Circumstances 

188 69 75 123   

Animal Complaints 177 26 50 72   
Alarms 186 49 38 73   
Juvenile Problems 197 77 96 150   
Thefts 222 72 72 109   
Suspicious Persons 187 47 55 80   
Welfare Checks-People 181 45 49 73   
Harassment 142 41 27 48   
Noise Complaints 172 19 40 71   
Incomplete 911 calls 116 43 33 44   
Warrant Service 98 28 19 39   
Fraud 81 22 21 28   
Domestic Disturbance 148 36 41 50   
Criminal Mischief 111 30 33 56   
Drug Complaints 62 18 19 33   
Burglaries 39 12 10 12   
Suicide Threats 22 6 1 6   
Suicide Attempts 8 3 2 2   
Mental Intervention 15 7 4 7   
Case Follow-Up 1,029 313 343 455   
Robberies 3 1 1 1   
Assaults 31 12 18 14   
Disturbances 49 33 36 48   
Assist Fire/Other PD 158 66 52 63   
Sex Offenses 17 4 7 8   
Missing Persons 13 3 2 5   
Arson 1 0 0 0   

 

38



3  

 

 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

547 
450 394 

1,115 
987 

1,160 

1,662 

1,437 
1,554 

0

200

400

600

800

1000

1200

1400

1600

1800

July 2012 August 2012 Sept. 2012

3rd Quarter Activity Totals 

Calls for Service Self-Initiated Activities Total Activities

4,831 4,866 
3,732 

14,272 
12,493 

9,696 

19,103 
17,359 

13,428 

0

5000

10000

15000

20000

25000

2010 2011 2012(3 Quarters)

Annual Total Activities 

Calls for Service Self-Initiated Activities Total Activities

39



4  

 

3rd Quarter Patrol Highlights 
 

In July, a misplaced cell phone turned into a very interesting theft case. As two teenage 
girls left the Sherwood Regal Cinema after a late movie, one of them realized she was 
missing her cell phone. Using a missing phone application, they learned the phone was 
still in the theatre. After unsuccessfully trying to get back into the locked theatre, they 
called the police. 
 
Two Sherwood Patrol Officers arrived and went back in the theatre with the girls. By 
calling the missing phone, the officers heard it vibrate and found it hidden in a wall 
behind the curtain. The officers questioned the construction crew, who didn’t work for 
the theatre, and eventually arrested one of them for stealing and hiding the phone. 
 
Through the ingenuity of the girls, and good police work the case was solved. The case 
was picked up by most all of the local broadcast media. 
************************************************************************ 
 
As previously reported, the Police Department is a permanent prescription drug take-
back location, with a drop box available during working hours, in the lobby of the police 
department. Our drop box was the first in South-East Washington County, and is a very 
popular and often used location. Hosting this drop-box location is a one part of our 
commitment to removing unwanted medications from the streets. 
 
On Saturday September 29th, the City of Sherwood Police Department hosted another 
Prescription Drug Take Back event from 10:00am through 2:00pm. Hosting these events 
is the other part of our commitment to removing unwanted prescription medication 
from the streets. During this most recent event, your police department took in just 
over 100 pounds of unwanted medications! 
************************************************************************ 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

40



5  

 

2012 Traffic Safety 
Traffic Safety 
Call/Activity 

2011 Totals Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 2012 Totals 

Traffic Crashes 208 66 91 123   
Traffic Stops-
Street 

5,353 1,430 1,357 1,473   

Citations-Street 3,290 482 521 558   
PRL Violations 17,040 1,828 2,481 3,024   
PRL Citations 8,664 849 1,103 1,066   
Extra Patrols 2,876 839 674 1,080   
Parking/City 
Ordinance 
Complaints 

210 40 39 60   

Motorist Assists 255 74 58 65   
Hazards 170 39 49 60   
Att. to Locate 
Driver (DUII-Reckless) 

132 55 64 128   

Driving Under the 
Influence 

97 21 36 40   

Traffic Complaints 
from Community 

89 20 26 29   

 

 
 

1,473 

558 

123 

0

200

400

600

800

1000

1200

1400

1600

Quarter 3

3rd Quarter Traffic Safety Totals 

Traffic Stops Citations Crashes

41



6  

 

 
 
 

 
 
 

1060 
1142 

822 

405 390 

271 

0

200

400

600

800

1000

1200

July 2012 August 2012 September 2012

PRLP-3rd Quarter Violation & Citation Totals 

Violations Citations

Linear (Violations) Linear (Citations)

602 
548 

678 680 

805 

996 
1060 

1142 

822 

262 263 270 
320 

365 
418 405 390 

271 

0

200

400

600

800

1000

1200

January
2012

February
2012

March
2012

April 2012 May 2012 June 2012 July August September

2012 Violation & Citation Totals 

Violations Citations Linear (Violations) Linear (Citations)

42



7  

 

3rd Quarter Traffic Safety Highlights 
 

On Saturday August 18th, the City of Sherwood Police Department hosted another Child 
Safety Seat Clinic. Again, several citizens showed up for this free service. The clinic ran 
from 9:00am through 12:00pm, but by 10:30am cars were being turned away because 
of the volume. 
 
Each inspection is conducted by a certified Technician and takes approximately 45 
minutes per seat. This includes some question and answer time and explanation of the 
proper procedure for installation. Many families arrive with brand new car seats and the 
technicians take the time to review the owner’s manual with them.  
 
These are very popular events and our Police Department has been very successful with 
this program, to the point of being established as a Regional Child Safety Seat 
Distribution Center. Child and passenger safety are an important part of our Traffic 
Safety Focus. 
 
 

 
3rd Quarter K-9 Update 

 
The first part of August, a selection team including Chief Groth, Captain Daniel and 
Officer Jentzsch traveled to Riverside California, to select a replacement K-9. After two 
days of testing and evaluating, Irma was selected as the next Police K-9 for the City of 
Sherwood. 
 
Irma is a 2 ½ year old female Belgium Malanois that was born, raised and trained in 
Germany. Irma is a very loving dog that has a high drive to please and solid training. 
 
During the months August and September, Irma has been acclimating to her new home 
and bonding with Officer Jentzsch. The pair has also been involved in local training and 
will be attending a full Patrol Dog training course this fall. 
 
 
 
 
 
 

43



8  

 

3rd Quarter Personnel Assignments and/or Changes 
 

On August 18th, Captain Ty Hanlon and Sergeant Jon Shields were administered their 
respective Oaths of Office during the regular City Council meeting. 
 
On September 2nd, Officer Nathan Powell was promoted and became Sergeant Nathan 
Powell. Sgt. Powell was administered the Oath of Office in the presence of his family, 
the City Council and the public at the September 18 City Council meeting. 
 
On September 4th, Officer Judd Moore began a short assignment as a Temporary Police 
Officer for the City of Sherwood. Officer Moore was previously a police officer with the 
City of Beaverton and retired in 2011. Officer Moore was hired on a temporary basis to 
help fill significant staffing shortages and reduce overtime costs and burnout. 
 
Officer Moore is a fully certified and highly experienced police officer with 30 years of 
patrol experience. Officer Moore will be with us for a maximum of six (6) months. While 
a new practice to the City of Sherwood, hiring temporary police officers on a short-term 
contract is a relatively common practice in the metro area. 
 
 

Upcoming Events & Important Reminders 
 
On Saturday October 13th, the City of Sherwood Police Department will be participating 
in the annual Special Olympics Tip-A-Cop, held once again at the Sherwood Red Robin. 
 
The same day as the annual Sherwood Onion Festival this year, Tip-A-Cop is a National 
event and the date is chosen by the Red Robin Corporation and Special Olympics. 
 
We hope everybody will visit and participate at the Onion Festival and then come eat 
dinner at Red Robin. 
 
On Saturday October 20th, the City of Sherwood Police Department will host the last 
Child Car Seat Clinic of 2012. This event will be at the police department between the 
hours of 9:00am and 12:00pm. This event should have several technicians in attendance 
and we hope to turn fewer people away. 

44


	01  City Council Packet Cover 11.14.12
	02  City Council Agenda for 11.14.12
	03  10.02.12 City Council Minutes-DRAFT
	04  10.16.12 City Council Minutes- DRAFT
	05  Resolution 2012-054 Reappoint Lynn Snyder to Parks Board-DRAFT 11.14.12
	06  Resolution 2012-055 Reappoint Marney Jett to Parks Board-DRAFT 11.14.12
	07  Ordinance 2012-013 Correction to Sidewalk Repair Legislation 2012-038-STAFF REPORT 11.02.12
	08  Ordinance 2012-013 Correction to Sidewalk Repair Legislation 2012-038-DRAFT 11.02.12
	09  Ordinance 2012-014 Repair of Concrete Sidewalks (Area 1, Phase 2)-STAFF REPORT 11.14.12
	10  Ordinance 2012-014 Repair of Concrete Sidewalks (Area 1, Section 2)-DRAFT 11.14.12
	11  Ordinance 2012-014 Repair of Concrete Sidewalks (Area 1, Section 2)-EXH A 11.14.12
	12  Field House Report Sept '12
	13  Field House Report Oct ' 12
	14  Recreation Report Sept '12
	15  Recreation Report Oct '12
	16  Library Report Sept '12
	17  Police Dept. Report 3rd Qtr 2012



